Date:
Time:

In-Person
Location:

Present:

Excused:

Guests:

STATE BOARD OF SPEECH PATHOLOGY & AUDIOLOGY

Professional and Vocational Licensing Division
Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs
State of Hawaii

MINUTES OF MEETING

July 30, 2024
2:00 p.m.

Queen Liliuokalani Conference Room
HRH King Kalakaua Building

335 Merchant Street, First Floor
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

Erin Firmin, Chair, Speech Pathologist

Dr. Denby Rall, Vice Chair, Audiologist

Lorna Hu, Member, Speech Pathologist

Brian Chen M.D., Public Member/Otorhinolaryngologist
Christopher Fernandez, Executive Officer (“EO”)
Rochelle Araki, EO

Juliet Kalilikane, Secretary

Christopher Leong, Esq., Deputy Attorney General (“DAG”)

Call to Order:

EO Report

Approval of

2:09 p.m. After a roll call confirming that she, Vice Chair Rall; Ms. Hu; and Dr.
Chen were all present and the Board had met quorum, Chair Firmin brought the
meeting to order.

It was also noted that Ms. Hu and Dr. Chen, attending remotely, were alone in
the room at their site.

EO Fernandez updated the Board on several things:

1. Current processing times for license applications for Speech
Pathologists and Provisional License holders remains at an average of
60 days, which accounts for applications whose processing is on hold
due to deficiencies that need to be corrected.

2. The 2024 legislative session was quiet for Speech Pathology and
Audiology. He added a bill that, if passed, would have included Hawaii
in the Audiology and Speech-Language Pathology Interstate Compact
(“ASLP-IC”), stating that the bill did not move and died. He additionally
stated that the legislature seemed to be focused on licensure
accessibility, provisional licensure, but with other health fields.

3. He noted that there has been no disciplinary action.

After Chair Firmin confirmed the public had no testimony, the Board reviewed



MEETING MINUTES
July 30, 2024

Meeting Minutes:

Applications:

the meeting minutes of November 7, 2023. Chair Firmin motioned to approve
the minutes as is, which was seconded by Vice Chair Rall, and approved

STATE BOARD OF SPEECH PATHOLOGY & AUDIOLOGY

unanimously by the Board.

A. Ratifications

After Chair Firmin confirmed there was no public testimony for sub-item A.
Ratifications or sub-item B. Applications, and on a motion by Chair Firmin,
seconded by Vice Chair Rall, the Board unanimously carried to approve the

ratification list below.

Audiologist

AUD-257
AUD-258
AUD-259
AUD-260
AUD-261
AUD-262
AUD-263
AUD-264
AUD-265

Lauren C Hourican
Barbara Gordon-Wendt
Lois M Bennardo
Tammy Jo Vaughan
Amanda K Tolen
Miguel McQueen

Jay Turner

Jessie-Anne Parham Penkoff

Danielle R Jenkins

Speech Pathologist

SP-2268
SP-2269
SP-2270
SP-2271
SP-2272
SP-2273
SP-2274
SP-2275
SP-2276
SP-2277
SP-2278
SP-2279
SP-2280
SP-2281
SP-2282
SP-2283
SP-2284
SP-2285
SP-2286
SP-2287
SP-2288
SP-2289
SP-2290

Lauren Dunn
Olivia Huff
Larisa Sydney Kalinowski
Genna K Arnell

Megan Landers

Jessa M Kieser

Elise M Cimino

Shaye A Kawashima
Jordan E Carter
Cynthia L Woodson
Kaylee J Onderko
Mary Katherine Jacobs
Dani C A Reyes-Torres
Stacey A Miller

Nicole Yoakley
Danielle S Hall

Janna M Ishikawa
Mallory A Sanders
Kelsey A Culhane
Kailey A H Kurashige
Lyla Worley

Nikki L Bond

Erin F Kiyuna



MEETING MINUTES
July 30, 2024

SP-2291
SP-2292
SP-2293
SP-2294
SP-2295
SP-2296
SP-2297
SP-2298
SP-2299
SP-2300
SP-2301
SP-2302
SP-2303
SP-2304
SP-2305
SP-2306
SP-2307
SP-2308
SP-2309
SP-2310
SP-2311
SP-2312
SP-2313
SP-2314
SP-2315
SP-2316
SP-2317
SP-2318
SP-2319
SP-2320
SP-2321
SP-2322
SP-2323
SP-2325
SP-2324
SP-2326
SP-2327
SP-2328
SP-2329
SP-2330
SP-2331
SP-2332

STATE BOARD OF SPEECH PATHOLOGY & AUDIOLOGY

Vanessa L Gomez
Ashlyn R Baker

Tani Noelle Cromwell
Josephine Abisha Jimenez
Amber N Engen

Anna C Longhi

Taylor Bly

Jennifer A Lee

Deanna Hale

Hodan Y Abdi

Danielle Rose Schwartz
Audrey Lynn Manalang Gillman
Mary Ross

Melanie Cap

Ashley S Thompson
Sullivan M Friedrich
Andrea M Moore

Kristen E Strange
Amanda M Pinto
Rachael Rebecca Rund
Krystalynn A Han

Bailey E Koebernick
Elizabeth D Pratt

Sara | Beltran

Celest R Harris

Betssica Marie Martinez Santiago
Lakken Elizabeth Meredith
Ashley Nicole Berry
Kristine C Matthias
Allison C Norris

Cara S Stone

Madelyn Kimberly Oshiro
Stephanie L Rich

Dora M Causy-Wilson
Charlotte L Harvell
Angelica | Herrera
Karise Hallsten

Laureline Sauvage
Andrew L Niles

Christina Zolper

Katie D Newell

Patricia K Blair

Speech Pathologist Provisional License

SPP-38
SPP-39

Madison S Dhaenens
Lilly C Turner

PAGE 3



MEETING MINUTES
July 30, 2024

Board
Administrative
Matters &

Planning:

STATE BOARD OF SPEECH PATHOLOGY & AUDIOLOGY PAGE 4

SPP-40 Rebecca Gerety
SPP-41 Dora M Causey-Wilson
SPP-42 Kristen E Strange
SPP-43 Christina M Aguilar
SPP-44 Kaitlyn Mieko Yamada
SPP-45 Laureline Sauvage
SPP-46 Lauren P Clark
SPP-47 Andrew L Niles
SPP-48 Karise Hallsten
SPP-49 Kristin R Howard
SPP-50 Sylvia K Maldonado
SPP-51 Scott K Davis

SPP-52 Justin G Tano

SPP-53 Teri L Kawasaki
SPP-54 Leticia Belmares Garcia
SPP-55 Grace Park

SPP-56 Victoria Magallanes
SPP-57 McKenzie V Sluggett
SPP-58 Caroline R Marta
SPP-59 Erika R Atkins

B. Speech Pathologist-Examination

On a motion by Vice Chair Rall, seconded by Dr. Chen, the Board unanimously
voted to enter into Executive Session at 2:16 p.m. pursuant to HRS sections
92-5(a)(1) and 92-5(a)(4) to consider and evaluate personal information relating
to individuals applying for professional or vocational licenses cited in section
26-9 or both and to consult with the board’s attorney on questions and issues
pertaining to the board’s powers, duties, privileges, immunities, and liabilities.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

At 2:32 p.m., it was moved by Chair Firmin, seconded by Dr. Chen, and
unanimously carried by the Board to return to open session. Chair Firmin
confirmed quorum, with Ms. Hu and Dr. Chen noting that they alone in their
remote location.

1. Marieangelica Rufino

On a motion by Chair Firmin, seconded by Dr. Chen, the Board
unanimously approved the application of Ms. Rufino.

After Chair Firmin confirmed there was no public testimony, she opened

discussion regarding the following:

1. Review and possible update to the application process including review
of EO delegations for applications approvals.

EO Fernandez informed the Board that currently it does not have any



MEETING MINUTES
July 30, 2024

STATE BOARD OF SPEECH PATHOLOGY & AUDIOLOGY PAGE 5

delegations to the Executive Officer allowing examination application
approvals outside of meetings. He noted with meetings being harder to
establish due to low quorum, it may be beneficial to create the
delegation allowing applications for examination to be approved . He
added that the Board would need to ensure that no deliberative
knowledge was required to review the applications that would qualify
under qualifications that the Board would need to determine.

The Current requirements for applications by examination are:
o Pay the license and application fees up front;
e Supply the application form;

e Two verification forms: The first, the clinical practicum verification,
and the second, the fellowship verification form;

e Submit (3) letters of the recommendation;
¢ Official transcripts; and
e Proof that they passed the praxis exam

EO Fernandez went on to explain that HRS 436B provides the Board
the authority to delegate certain tasks to the Executive Officer so long
as they do not require the deliberative knowledge, or professional
expertise, of the Board. He asked if applications for examination require
deliberative knowledge.

The Board reviewed the application forms, and it was noted that:

e The application form does not have information requiring deliberative
knowledge, although in certain cases it may.

e The Clinical Observation and Clinical Practicum verification form
requires the applicant to have their supervisor complete the form,
which includes entering the date range of the experience, duration,
the total hours, the position, the site, and organization. The
supervisor of the clinical program or clinical director signs the form
and provides a summary which may require board review. The
practicum summary, qualitative in nature, is one place the Board
would likely be looking to see if the delegation of approval of
examination applications is possible.

EO Fernandez added that if no deliberative knowledge is needed to
review an application including in the practicum verification, then a
delegation may be possible.

o EO Fernandez stated that the fellowship verification would be similar
to the practicum verification, in that, the Board would need to ensure
that information does not require deliberative knowledge to assess.



MEETING MINUTES
July 30, 2024

STATE BOARD OF SPEECH PATHOLOGY & AUDIOLOGY PAGE 6

e EO Fernandez also stated that the letters of recommendation may
also be a requirement that may need deliberative knowledge to
review.

It was Vice Chair Rall’s opinion that the letters do not require
deliberative knowledge since the letter is either going to recommend the
applicant or not.

EO Araki asked if the summary of duties would require deliberative
knowledge.

Chair Firmin asked if the Board could create a checklist instead of
requiring a summary.

EO Fernandez suggested it is possible, but in his work with another
board looking at the same information, it was determined that a statute
or rules change would need to happen in order to include a check-off list
for what the internship and post-degree experience should include.

Chair Firmin asked if there were any further questions from the Board.

Ms. Hu added that she felt the applications that have come before the
Board at meetings were not really at risk of not being approved, but
rather it was administratively necessary, and that she has no concerns
about a delegation (if possible). She was also open to the Chair
reviewing application prior to meetings as well to give recommendations.

EO Fernandez stated that it is likely a delegation would need to be
either given to the EO, or the Board retains the authority. He added that
someone could be designated to review applications, but the approvals
would still need to happen at a meeting.

EO Araki noted that the reviewer could recommend an application for
approval, but the Board would need to make the approval at a meeting.

Chair Firmin tabled the conversation until the next meeting.

Update the legislative board liaison for next legislative session.

EO Fernandez explained that historically the Board has voted to form a
legislative committee of no more than two members for each legislative
session (to address legislative matters). The division has moved from
the use of term ‘legislative committee’ to ‘legislative liaison’. He added
that the name would not change the function since it can be two
members or one. He lastly added that this could be voted on at the
current meeting or the Board’s next meeting.

Chair Firmin asked if there was any additional comments or questions
from members. Hearing none she tabled the vote for the next meeting.

Board position vacancies and the process for applying.




MEETING MINUTES
July 30, 2024

STATE BOARD OF SPEECH PATHOLOGY & AUDIOLOGY PAGE 7

EO Fernandez explained that board positions both public and
professional, adding that the Board has an additional requirement of
having a public member present at meetings to establish quorum. He
requested that since it generally seems to take some time to on-board
members if members wished to step down or are coming to the close of
their first term (and do not wish to renew for a second term) to inform
him as soon as possible so that the Board could work on filling the
position. He added that the Board currently has 2 public member
positions vacant, an Audiologist positions, and noted that Ms. Hu’s 2™
term was ending in the coming year.

It was noted that those interested in joining the Board, can go the
Boards and Commissions website (https://boards.hawaii.gov/) to begin
filling out the application. Those applying for a board position can chose
which board to be placed on. He asked that those interested to email
the Board stating their intent so that the Board can monitor progress.

Chair Firmin asked if a member needed to be a resident of this state, or
can they be located in another state.

EO Fernandez suggested that the Board hold on that question so that it
could ask DAG Leong, noting that he was away in another scheduled
meeting at the moment.

Members acknowledged the suggestion, and Chair Firmin asked if there
were any other questions from members. With none, she moved to the
next sub-item.

Subject matters being researched by the Board and EO.

Chair Firmin noted that the Board has been researching the regulation
of Speech-Language Pathologist Assistants (“SLPA”).

EO Fernandez provided information about his research into the
profession noting that SLPA regulation, either licensure or some form
certification, is common. He added that he had recalled that the Board
of Dentistry has language regarding the relationship between Dental
Assistants and Dentists. He noted that Dental Assistants are not
licensed in Hawaii, but are included in the Dentistry administrative rules,
which allows Dentists to supervise their work. The caveat being they
can only perform the duties allowed in the rules, which are listed out.
He additionally noted that the duties they cannot perform are also listed.

Certain considerations were noted including:
o That the Board consider whether an unlicensed practitioner could be
disciplined if working under the supervision of a Speech Pathologist.

e That other states’ handling of SLPA regulation be researched.

He noted that this was one option that possibly does not require new
legislation to be introduced to create a new license type for SLPA’s. He


https://boards.hawaii.gov/

MEETING MINUTES
July 30, 2024

STATE BOARD OF SPEECH PATHOLOGY & AUDIOLOGY PAGE 8

also noted that this would still require legislation to be introduced.
Ms. Hu asked if Teacher’s Aids are regulated in the state.

EO Fernandez noted they were not through the Professional Vocational
Licensing Division, but suggested that perhaps the Hawaii Department
of Education (“DOE”) regulated them via employment (meeting certain
requirements for the position, e.g., holding a national certification).

Chair Firmin noted that the DOE hires unlicensed “Communication
Aides”.

Ms. Hu offered that there should be a list of what duties they perform
(referring to SLPAs), and duties they cannot, including but not limited to:
swallowing; and diagnostic testing.

Chair Firmin agreed and felt that after reading the administrative rules
pertaining to Dental Assistants, the Board could create a draft list of
duties and prohibited duties based on, but not limited to, ASHA
(American of Speech-Language-Hearing Association) standards.

It was noted that ASHA has a lot of materials regarding SLPA
standards.

EO Fernandez stated that he would reach out to ASHA for information.
Referring back to the Board’s intention to create a duties list, he
suggested that the Board start to consider how to address the matter at
the Board’s next meeting.

EO Araki asked if there were any states that did not license SLPAs but
had what duties they can and cannot due under a licensed practitioner.
She also noted to look at states that do license them and provide the
duties lists.

Chair Firmin suggested that California be a starting point since they
register SLPAs under the license of Speech pathologists.

Ms. Hu asked if a Permitted Interaction Group (“PIG”) would be needed
to discuss this matter outside of the meeting.

EO Fernandez suggested the Board receive an explanation from DAG
Leong about creating a PIG, or just assigning the task to two board
members, which adheres to permitted interactions in the Sunshine Law.

Chair Firming asked if there was any further discussion.

Vice Chair Rall asked if national certification would be considered as
requirement for SLPAs.

EO Fernandez questioned if certification could be requested of a
profession that was not licensed, and added in the hypothetical situation
where legislation is introduced for SLPA licensure, then the Board would



MEETING MINUTES STATE BOARD OF SPEECH PATHOLOGY & AUDIOLOGY PAGE 9
July 30, 2024

want to look at that as a requirement.
Chair Firmin tabled the discussion until the Board’s next meeting.
Next Meeting: Chair Firmin noted the next meeting as scheduled:
Friday, October 29, 2024
Virtual Conference—Zoom Meeting, and

Queen Liliuokalani Conference Room
HRH King Kalakaua Building

Adjournment: There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned by Chair Firmin at
3:08 p.m.

Taken, Recorded, Reviewed and Approved By:

s/ Christopher Fernandez
Christopher Fernandez
Executive Officer

CF

[ X] Minutes approved as is.
[ 1 Minutes approved with changes; see minutes of




	MINUTES OF MEETING

